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Agthia at
a Glance
Agthia is a leading Abu Dhabi based food and
beverages group established in 2004.

The Company is listed on the Abu Dhabi
Securities Exchange (ADX) and has
the symbol “Agthia”. 51 percent of the
Company’s shares are held by General
Holding Corporation, an Abu Dhabi
Government entity, with the balance held
by individual and institutional investors.
Agthia’s mission is to create a world
class portfolio of integrated businesses
delivering high quality, trusted and
innovative food and beverage products to
consumers across the region.
The company’s assets are in the UAE and
Egypt and it’s products are present in
the UAE, Oman, Bahrain, Qatar, Kuwait
and Saudi Arabia markets.
Agthia employs nearly 1,400 people
across its four fully owned subsidiaries;
Al Ain Water, a leading producer of high
quality bottled water and beverages;
Grand Mills for Flour & Feed, a pioneer
in the production of high quality flour
and animal feed;
Al Ain Vegetable Processing and Canning
Factory, a leading manufacturer of
tomato paste and frozen vegetables;
and Al Ain Food & Beverages, an
Egypt based producer of tomato paste
concentrate and fruit puree.
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Vision, Mission &
Core Values
Vision
To be recognised as UAE’s Best Food & Beverage
Company.
Mission

We will deliver superior value to our
shareholders by:
organizational
excellence
• Bringing innovative, nutritious & trusted • Achieving
through a corporate culture which fosters
products to our consumers & customers
commitment, achievement, teamwork
in line with their health & wellness needs
and entrepreneurship, thus making us an
employer of choice
• Driving the growth of categories that we
choose, and by servicing our customers
in a reliable, efficient & profitable man- • Being a socially responsible & environmentally friendly organization
ner, thus making us a partner of choice

Core Values
COMMITMENT
Passionate ownership and determination to deliver

TEAMWORK
Individuals play the game, but unified teams win the championship

ACHIEVEMENT
Aiming higher and always striving
to over deliver

ENTREPRENEURSHIP
Turning creative ideas into effective
business solutions
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Chairman’s
Message
Dear Shareholders,
It is with great pleasure that I can report
to you another very successful year for
Agthia, despite the adverse economic
conditions that we have seen in the UAE,
across the region and internationally.
The strong financial and operational performance in 2009 marked a promising
start to the “Sustainable Growth” phase
of our strategy.
Agthia’s performance in 2009 reflects
the vitality of the food & beverage categories where we compete, and the strong
market positions our brands hold in
these categories. Our portfolio of leading
brands has shown resilience to the challenging economic environment.

our attention will also continue to focus
on profitability. Margin management remains a key focus area for us. This will
enable us to reinvest in increasing levels
of consumer and trade marketing support in order to further drive growth in
net sales. We believe savings from our
margin management initiatives will drive
margin expansion and contribute to earnings growth for our business.

The company will continue investing behind upgrading its existing manufacturing
capability in pursuing incremental efficiencies, while expanding capacity where
necessary to meet projected demand. We
remain highly committed to bring high
quality products to our customers and
Looking at our performance for 2009, consumers in a consistent manner.
net sales grew by 8% while profits continued to grow faster than sales, at 43.4% In addition to delivering sustainable
year on year reaching AED 105.7 million. shareholder value, Agthia is committed
Earnings per share also grew in line with to achieving organizational excellence
profits, with EPS reaching AED 0.176. through a corporate culture that fosters
Return on capital, at 17.6%, reflects an commitment, achievement, teamwork and
improvement of 530 basis points com- entrepreneurship. Ultimately we aim to
become the Best Food & Beverage Compared with last year.
pany in the UAE. We define Best as best
Looking ahead, we have created a strong performance, best products, best people,
foundation from which we can continue best brands and best business practices.
to grow. We have identified five key strategic initiatives that will be the drivers Agthia launched its new and refreshing
behind our overall objective of deliver- corporate identity to reflect the changing
ing long term, sustainable growth for our characteristics of the business. It reflects more closely our position as a leadbusiness. They are:
ing player in the fast moving consumer
goods industry in the UAE – our fresh,
• Brand building and brand leverage
nimble and forward looking approach.
• Product portfolio expansion
• Regional expansion
It is with much excitement that I intro• Entering new synergistic categories
duce to you Agthia’s revised statement
• Margin expansion
of intent:
Our growth depends on partnering effectively with our retail, food service, in- “For Wholehearted Living
stitution and farm customers. While we
target top line growth across the Group, Everything we do at Agthia is wholehearted.
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Catering for people from all nationalities
and walks of life, we produce food and
drink that help families grow strong and
lead lives full of vitality.
This wholehearted commitment drives
what we do at every stage of the food
chain- from field to fork. It also guides
our attitude to sustainability and our
relationships with the people we work
with.
Wholeheartedly we embrace our position at the heart of the region and work
towards helping it grow stronger every
day.
We’re for wholehearted living; because
it’s only when you live life to the full that
you have a life worth living for”
Agthia’s people are our most powerful
competitive advantage. I want to thank
them for their ongoing commitment and
the valuable contribution to the growth of
the Company. Their talent and dedication
give me great confidence in our ability to
achieve our future growth goals. I would
also like to acknowledge the contribution
of our Board of Directors.
In closing, let me also thank you for your
investment in Agthia. I look forward to reporting on our continuing progress.
Sincerely

Rashed Mubarak Al Hajeri
Chairman of the Board

“ For wholehearted living.
Everything we do at Agthia is wholehearted.
Catering for people from all nationalities
and walks of life, we produce food and drink
that help families grow strong and lead lives
full of vitality.
This wholehearted commitment drives what
we do at every stage of the food chain- from
field to fork. It also guides our attitude to
sustainability and our relationships with the
people we work with.
Wholeheartedly we embrace our position
at the heart of the region and work towards
helping it grow stronger every day.
We’re for wholehearted living; because it’s
only when you live life to the full that you
have a life worth living for”
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Directors’ Report
The Board of Directors of Agthia Group
PJSC (“the Company”) is pleased to
present to its shareholders the Company’s Annual Report and audited Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2009.
2009 was characterized by sustained
growth at Agthia. The Company’s record
results came at a difficult economic
time in the UAE, across the region and
globally. Despite this challenging backdrop, the Company’s management team
maintained its track record of continued
growth, achieving another strong performance at the Group level.

The Company has entered the “Sustainable Growth” phase of its strategy, aiming to become the leader in its chosen
categories, leveraging its brands, pursuing regional expansion, product portfolio
expansion and continuously improving
resource efficiencies.
The financial results underline the commitment and ability of the management
team to deliver on its strategy that aims
to create sustainable, long term, profitable growth for its shareholders.

Group Highlights: Sustaining Growth
AED Millions	

2009

2008

Change

921.4

853.9

+8%

27.2%

20.9%

+630 bp

Operating Profit

108.2

77.8

+39.1%

Profit for the Year

105.7

73.7

+43.4%

Total Assets

1,190

1,060

+12.2%

899

795.3

+13%

0.176

0.123

+43.4%

Return on Capital

17.6%

12.3%

+530 bp

Return on Equity

13.3%

10.2%

+310 bp

Net Sales
Gross Profit Margin

Shareholders’ Equity
Earnings Per Share (AED)
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Sales
Agthia recorded an 8% increase in net
sales to AED 921.4 million for 2009.
This compares to AED 853.9 million in
the same period last year. Sales were underpinned by volume growth across all
product lines and in the water & beverages business in particular. The integration of Capri Sun in the first half of 2009
also contributed to the sales growth.

0.123 in 2008 following a trend similar
to profit growth.

Costs
Selling and general administration expenses (SG&A) in 2009 reached AED
146.2 million, an increase of 28.5%
year-on-year. This is primarily due to the
consolidation of costs in 2009 relating
to the Capri Sun business, as well as the
costs associated with the new factory
All three business segments delivered in Egypt that were not included in last
strong volume growth compared with year’s consolidated results. On a com2008. However, the decline in the ani- parable basis, growth in SG&A is 21%,
mal feed selling price, caused by a re- reflecting higher distribution costs (volduction in the price of grain, meant ume related), the full year impact of the
sales revenues in the flour & feed seg- tomato paste & frozen vegetables busiment were not in line with the volume ness and normal inflationary increases.
increases. Sales in the water & beverage
division grew by 49%, the tomato paste Cost of goods sold, at AED 671 million,
& frozen vegetables business delivered remained almost flat compared to last
sales growth of 8%, while flour & feed year despite strong volume growth prisales, as explained above, remained flat marily due to the drop in grain prices. In
despite 6% volume increase. We believe 2009, a state subsidy of AED 154 milthat the animal feed price decline has lion from the Abu Dhabi Government was
recognized in the accounts as a reducnow leveled out.
tion from cost of goods sold. The purpose of the subsidy was to reduce the
Profitability
Net profit for the year reached AED impact of high grain prices on food retail
105.7 million, representing year-on-year prices for consumers in the Abu Dhabi
growth of 43.4%. The net profit growth Emirate. This social commitment by the
was predominantly driven by an improve- government is welcomed by Agthia.
ment in the gross profit margin, higher
sales volumes and the favorable impact Balance Sheet
of the ongoing cost saving initiatives that The Group’s balance sheet remains solcontinued through the year. These record id. All key financial indicators reflected
results are in line with management’s de- strong performance:
sire to grow profit faster than sales.
• Net cash of AED 248.3 million was generated from operations.
Gross profit margin for the year increased to 27.2% from 20.9% in 2008, • Debt to equity ratio remained low at
10.6%.
reflecting an improvement of 630 basis
points, mainly generated by the flour • Return on Capital, at 17.6%, reflects an
improvement of 530 basis points over
business. While the first half saw unusulast year.
ally high profit margins in flour business
where wheat prices fell faster than the • Return on Equity also improved, reaching 13.3% compared to 10.2% in
retail price of flour, the second half saw
2008.
the profit margins return to normalized
• Trade receivables remained flat versus
levels.
last year despite the sales growth, demonstrating the tight management of the
Earnings per share for the year grew by
Company’s working capital.
43.4% to AED 0.176 compared to AED
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BUSINESS DIVISIONS
Flour & Animal Feed
The Grand Mills brand remains a leading
brand in both flour and animal feed in
the UAE. In line with Agthia’s commitment to gradually reduce its reliance on
the flour & animal feed business, and to
diversify into higher margin businesses,
the contribution to total group revenue
by this division further dropped by 6 percentage points, to 73%, in 2009.
Despite the 6% volume growth delivered
by the flour & feed business, revenues at
AED 669 million remained almost flat as
the result of drop in animal feed prices
compared to last year due to a decline
in grain prices. The flour and animal
feed gross profit margin improved by
700 basis points to 23% in 2009. This
improvement mainly came from the flour
business during the first half of the year
when the decline in wheat prices outpaced the decline in the market selling
price of flour. As outlined above, as the
market selling price began to decline in
line with the drop in grain prices, the
margin has almost reached a normalized
level during second half of the year.

The UAE flour and animal feed sector is
becoming increasingly competitive. As
a consequence, it will be a challenge to
maintain the current level of high profitability while management is focused on
maintaining its existing market share.
Water & Beverages
Al Ain Water is the number one brand in
Abu Dhabi with volume market share of
41%, and a strong number two player in
the UAE with 24% volume market share.
The water and beverages business represents 22% of total Group revenues, corresponding to an increase of 6 percentage
points over last year’s figure.
The water and beverages business sustained its strong growth track record in
2009 despite a challenging and competitive market. This division achieved sales
of AED 206 million, representing 49%
growth. Discounting the Capri Sun juice
line that was launched in March 2009, the
water business sales grew by 23%, while
volume recorded a growth of 31%.

The water and beverages gross profit margin also improved by 100 basis points to
43% compared to last year. This increase
Currently, the Company’s flour mill is run- in profitability is due to the effects of cost
ning at full capacity and additional flour saving measures and the related drop in
demand is met by outsourcing to third PET prices.
parties. Agthia’s management plans to
increase the Company’s flour milling ca- The integration of Capri Sun has been
pacity by 50% by installing a new mill- successful, with production and distriing plant involving estimated Capex of bution commencing on schedule in late
AED 50 million. Management expects March 2009. The market acceptance
to begin production in the second half of and response has been favorable, and the
2011. Additional capacity will meet the plant is almost running at full capacity.
Company’s current and future requirements and will ultimately help to improve New production lines for the Capri Sun
juice and bottled water are expected to
margins in this business.
come on stream in the first quarter of
Increasing focus is being placed on flour 2010. This will allow continued growth
retail packs, speciality flour and mixes in production capacity to meet demands
and frozen products. These products from the domestic and export markets for
continue to represent a good growth op- both bottled water and Capri Sun juice.
portunity for Grand Mills. Management
has increased the number of animal feed Tomato Paste & Frozen Vegetables
distribution channels that will provide the Al Ain Vegetable has a leading position
Company with a competitive edge and in the UAE tomato paste segment and
will help to increase volumes. In addition, a growing presence in the increasingly
the animal feed programmes introduced important frozen vegetable sector. This
for dairy and poultry have been received new business segment was integrated
into the Company in early 2008. At the
well by customers.

12 / Annual Report 2009

end of 2009, it contributed 5% to total
group sales.
The division’s sales grew by 8% to AED
46 million against the backdrop of a
challenging global tomato paste market.
The division’s gross margin, at 23%, declined by 5 percentage points as a result
of a fall in global tomato paste prices and
the inflow of cheaper and poorer quality
tomato paste from China. This development has created intense competition in
the domestic and export markets. The
management has adjusted its strategy
to improve the margin and drive volumes
for this business.
This new division has focused on enhancing its brand. A range of new, higher margin products, including olive oil,
tomato paste products in tetra packs
and sachets, and tomato sauces was
introduced during 2009. Management
is encouraged by the take up of these
new products. Looking ahead, other new
product launches are in the pipeline.

Auditors
The present Auditors M/s KPMG, are not
eligible for reappointment. According to
Company’s Article of Association external auditors should be replaced every five
years. The Board therefore recommends
appointment of M/s Ernst & Young as
external auditors of the Company for the
year 2010 at the Annual General Meeting.
Future Outlook
We remain optimistic about the prospects
for future revenue and profit growth as the
Company pursues its strategy of introducing new and value added products, continued geographical expansion and high
operating efficiencies. However, from a
macroeconomic perspective, the Company
remains cautious of the uncertainties surrounding the current economic & financial
environment in the UAE, regionally and
globally.
Financial Reporting Framework
The Directors of Agthia Group PJSC, to the
best of their knowledge, believe that:

The Company’s new tomato paste fac- • The financial statements, prepared by
tory in Egypt commenced shipment in
the management of the company, fairly
August 2009. Most of the volume was
present its state of affairs, the results
shipped to the Company’s UAE factory
of its operation, cash flows and change
with a small quantity directly exported
in equity.
to international markets. The factory
is expanding its production line to in- • The Company has maintained proper
clude fruit puree, french fries and frobooks of accounts.
zen vegetables.
• Appropriate accounting policies have
Subsequent Events
been consistently applied in preparaThe first quarter of 2010 has seen no sigtion of financial statements and acnificant events. New Capri Sun juice and
counting estimates are based on reabottled water lines are expected to come
sonable and prudent judgment.
on stream in the first quarter of 2010.
While uncertainty continues in the global • International
Financial
Reporting
markets, including the UAE, Agthia’s busiStandards (IFRS), as applicable in the
ness continues to perform in line with
UAE, have been followed in the preparamanagement expectations.
tion of these financial statements.
Directors
• The system of internal control is sound
The present Board of Directors were rein design and has been effectively imelected at the Annual General Meeting on
plemented and monitored.
April 24th 2008 for a term of three years.
• There is no doubt about the Company’s
Directors’ fees of AED 1.3 million relating to
ability to continue as a going concern.
2008 were paid to Board members in 2009.
In 2009 remuneration was AED 1.5 million. Code of Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors and management
Dividend
of the Company are committed to the prinBoard of Directors is pleased to recom- ciples of Good Governance. A full report on
mend 5% cash dividend for the year 2009. the Company’s corporate governance ac-
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tivities has been provided in the Corporate tion, increased employee welfare, and efGovernance section of this Annual Report. fective risk management.
Incentivisation / Remuneration
The Board of Directors recognizes the
importance of aligning the management
interest with those of the Company’s
shareholders. In order to strengthen this
alignment, Agthia’s existing stock incentivisation scheme has been expanded to
include a greater number of senior managers across the Group. The programme
builds upon the existing performance bonus incentives that rewards individuals
based on their ability to achieve annual
financial targets. The stock scheme further
rewards management with Agthia stock
based on the overall performance of the
Company, measured on a three year compounded EPS growth target basis, and the
performance of the individual. Specific
financial, operational and development
goals are set each year.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Agthia will implement a robust CSR program with many initiatives. In a move towards this programme we have initiated
measures to reduce the Company’s usage
of energy, further reduction of PET usage
in bottles, and introduction of recycling
through successful targeted campaigns.
Our focus for CSR initiatives will be built
on the pillars of Health and Wellness, Food
Safety and Security, Environmental Protection and People Development.
The Board would like to take this opportunity to thank our business partners, employees and the shareholders for their continued support and recognises their vital
role in making all our efforts successful.
On behalf of the Board,

New Corporate Identity
During the second half of 2009, the Company began working on refreshing its corporate identity to reflect the changing characteristics of the business and to being a H.E. Rashed Mubarak Al Hajeri
modern and nimble organization. This Chairman
Report reflects the new corporate identity
adopted by the Company.
The Company’s total commitment to quality and its passion for balanced eating,
drinking, and living well, is behind the
drive to produce wholesome foods that
help families from all nationalities grow
stronger, so that they can lead lives full of
vitality. A commitment to the Company’s
position at the heart of the region drives
the businesses at every stage of the food
chain, guides its attitude towards sustainability, and strengthens the relationships
with employees, customers, suppliers,
partners, and shareholders.
Health, Safety & Environment (HSE)
Agthia’s management is committed to the
implementation of sound quality, health,
safety and environmental practices based
on international standards (ISO 14001,
OHSAS 18001) and best practices. Agthia
has demonstrated its initial step on improving overall HSE performance by creating a dedicated Quality Assurance and
HSE department reporting to the CEO. The
initiatives are aimed towards introduction
of waste management, accident preven-
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Flour &
Animal Feed
Agthia’s Flour and Animal Feed Business Division,
“Grand Mills”, has had a year of achievements
in many fronts. Despite the difficult economic
environment, the business has made progress in
all key business performance areas.
Despite the 6% volume growth delivered
by the flour & animal feed business, revenues at AED 669 million remained almost
flat versus 2008, caused by the drop in
animal feed selling prices following the
decline in world grain prices. Grand Mills
is a leading brand in both flour and animal feed in the UAE, with volume market
share of 43% in flour and 44% in animal
feed (internal estimates).
The 2009 business strategy focused on
driving demand and improving profitability by introducing innovative, high
margin new products, continuing the
diversification and expansion of the existing product portfolio, and expanding
distribution.

ers and new distribution channels, such
as Al Ain and Abu Dhabi Municipalities,
thus opening new territories of opportunity for future expansion.
Moving forward, the business strategy is
to aggressively drive profitable growth in
the areas of flour and flour related products, and equally in animal feed through
margin enhancing initiatives. New investments are planned in 2010 to expand the
manufacturing capabilities in flour and
animal feed in order to expand distribution across the UAE and further build on
the Company’s regional expansion strategy in flour.

New Product Development (NPD) is one
of the primary growth pillars, both in
terms of volume and value. Grand Mills
entered the B2B/B2C high margin Frozen Dough Products and in animal feed
launched Dairy, Poultry, Ungulate, Ruminant, Camel as well as “Ideal Protein” for
Broiler Programs. The latter took Grand
Mills Animal Feed business into standards of the highest scientific level and
positioned Grand Mills as the preferred
and most reliable animal feed service expert in the UAE.
Expanding distribution has been a critical growth driver and a constant area of
focus in line with the business strategy.
In existing traditional channels such as
bakeries, local markets and retail customers, product awareness and distribution improved through product portfolio
mixes targeting each individual channel.
In 2009, Grand Mills gained new custom-
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Water &
Beverages
Agthia’s Water and Beverage Business Division,
“Al Ain Water”, once again posted a strong
performance in 2009. A focused, targeted
business strategy based upon driving continued
organic growth in its base bottled water business
combined with the effective integration of its new
Capri-Sun juice business delivered sales of AED
206 million, representing a strong 49% growth
versus 2008.
The business effectively consolidated
and expanded its footprint from its already strong base in Abu Dhabi where it
is the number one bottled water choice of
consumers. Previous year investments in
both sales and distribution capabilities
have now led the business to become the
clear and growing number two bottled
water player in Dubai, Sharjah and the
Northern Emirates. In 2009, significant
inroads were also made in the key institutional sales segment with the Business
securing exclusive water supply rights
for its Al Ain Water to new prestigious
accounts such as Emirates Airlines, Abu
Dhabi National Hotels/Compass Group,
The National Corporation of Tourism
and Hotels, and both the Al Ain and Abu
Dhabi Municipalities.

cility in Al Ain in 2009. A strong sales
focus, combined with effective consumer
promotional support and in-store visibility programs consolidated Capri Sun’s
brand credentials as the “No.1 Kids
Juice Drink In The World.” The brand has
quickly established itself as the leading
brand in the UAE juice drinks segment
with 8% market share (Source: MEMRB
Retail Juice Report; Sept/Oct 2009).
Capri-Sun sales and distribution was
also expanded to the GCC markets with
the brand being integrated into the Business’ existing bottled water distributor
product portfolios in order to secure operational and business synergies.

Ice Crystal continued to establish itself as a strong 5-gallon brand with its
business base firmly entrenched in the
Al Ain Water’s export business also deliv- institutional sales segment. Overall volered strong performance in 2009 with its ume grew by 36% versus previous year.
GCC distribution network in Bahrain, Qa- Ice Crystal volume growth combined
tar and Oman being further augmented with the launch of Al Ain 5-gallon forby the appointment of a formal distribu- mat targeted at household consumers
tor in Kuwait. Overall export water vol- consolidated the Business’ entry into
the important HOD (Home Office Delivume grew by 30% versus 2008.
ery) bulk bottled water segment which
The Capri Sun juice and Ice Crystal five continues to account for approximately
gallon water businesses also contributed 60% of bottled water volume in the
significantly to 2009’s overall strong per- UAE. Al Ain Water is committed to continually invest in and deliver superior
formance:
quality product and service to its cusCapri Sun juice was effectively re- tomers and consumers, the Business
launched into the UAE market following introduced a new automated Customer
the opening of a new manufacturing fa- Call Centre in 2009.
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New investments are being made at the
manufacturing level in order to not only meet a
significant, growing demand for its high quality
bottled water product; but also broaden the
Business’ manufacturing capabilities and flexibility as
part of a planned innovation roadmap. The overall
objective is aimed at extending its longer-term
beverage portfolio and footprint. The business will,
therefore, look to deliver strong, product platforms
in new consumer- and environmentally-friendly
packaging initiatives.

Following the completion of its first threeyear strategic plan in 2009, the business
is confident it has met its primary objectives of, firstly, securing a strong financial
turnaround of the business; secondly, establishing a solid operational and organizational business foundation; and finally
driving and consolidating Al Ain Water’s
brand equity and reputation in the marketplace.
Over its next strategic plan period, Al Ain
Water is committed to further enhance
its growing reputation across the UAE
and the GCC, respectively. Management
will be looking to further build upon its
successes; Al Ain’s recognized first class
manufacturing capabilities; and strong
inherent consumer brand equity.
Ismail Matar Al-Junaibi
Center forward for UAE national team.
Al Ain Mineral Water is the Official Water
Partner for UAEFA
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Tomato Paste &
Frozen Vegetables
Agthia’s Tomato Paste and Frozen Vegetable
Business Division, “Al Ain Vegetable Processing
and Canning Factory”, acquired in early 2008 has
since transitioned from a trading based business
into a brand building environment.
The business sales at AED 46 million
grew by 8% versus 2008, driven by volume growth in tomato paste and high
pricing in frozen vegetables. Tomato
paste volume and gross profit margin
were impacted due to a fall in the global tomato paste prices and the inflow of
cheaper and poorer quality tomato paste
from China.

the platform for introduction and expansion of the Business’ existing and future
product portfolio in the surrounding
regions.

In 2009, the Business aggressively embarked on building an exciting New
Product Development (NPD) pipeline,
launching 5 new products: Tomato Paste
in Tetra Pak, Tomato Paste in Pouch, 2
variants of Pasta Sauces in Jars, 5 variants of Extra Virgin Olive Oil and 3 variants of Frozen Soup Mixes. NPD is at the
core of the business strategy moving forward and will remain a major contributor
to the Business’ success in 2010, with
already several new NPDs in the pipeline
set to be launched.

Moving forward, the Business is equipped
to continue delivering growth, through
strategic brand management, geographical expansion and exciting new product
development.

“Al Ain Food and Beverages” production
facility in Egypt represents Agthia’s first
international expansion outside the UAE.
The factory commenced tomato paste
production and shipment in August
The business marked a significant in- 2009. Most of the volume was shipped
crease in UAE market share for the “Al to the Company’s UAE based factory with
Ain” brand in 2009, with 12% in Tomato a small quantity directly exported to the
Paste and 5% in Frozen Vegetables, mak- international markets. The factory is exing the Business the number two player panding its production line to include
in tomato paste and a strongly competi- fruit puree, French fries and frozen
vegetables.
tive player in frozen vegetable.

Extending the Business’ market footprint through geographical expansion
has been a constant focus in its strategy. In 2009, the Business successfully
established a presence in nearly all GCC
& Levant markets. The newly established
distribution network is geared to become
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Board of
Directors
H.E Rashed Mubarak Al Hajeri
Chairman
Chairman of Department of Municipal Affairs, Abu Dhabi
Member of the Abu Dhabi Executive Council

H.E. Majed Salem Al Romaithi
Vice Chairman
Executive Director of Real Estate,
Abu Dhabi Investment Authority

H.E. Abu Bakr Siddiq Khouri
Member
Managing Director, Sorouh Real Estate PJSC

H.E. Jumma K. Al Khaili
Member
Executive Director of Equities, Far East,
Abu Dhabi Investment Authority
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H.E. Mohammed Thani
Murshed Al Rumaithi
Member
Chairman of Thani Murshed Establishment
Chairman of Thani Murshed Unilever

H.E. Tareq Al Masaood
Member
Deputy Managing Director,
Al Masaood Automobiles

H.E. Suhail M. Al Ameri
Member
Director General,
General Holding Corporation
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Executive
Committee
Ilias Assimakopoulos

Greek, 47 years
Chief Executive Officer
Joined Agthia Group in July 2006 as first CEO.
Previous posts include: Regional General Manager,
Reckitt Benckiser, Middle East & North Africa.
General Manager, The Gillette Company, Czech &
Slovakia.

Iqbal Hamzah

Pakistani, 49 years
Chief Financial Officer
Joined Agthia Group in August 2006.
Previous posts include: Regional Financial Director, The Gillette Company/P&G, Russia, Republics
& Baltics. Regional Financial Director, The Gillette
Company, Middle East & Africa.

Tariq Aziz

British, 46 years
Group Projects & Business Solutions Director
Joined Agthia Group in February 2007.
Previous posts include: Associate Finance Director, P&G, UK. Group Finance Manager, The Gillette Company, UK, Africa, Middle East & Eastern
Regions. Regional Finance Manager, The Gillette
Company, Russia.

Toufic El Chaar

Lebanese, 53 years
Group Human Resources Director
Joined Agthia Group in January 2008.
Previous posts include: Vice President HR &
Organization Development, Al Homaizi Group,
Kuwait. Group HR Director, SITA, Europe, Middle
East and Africa based in Rome & Geneva. Regional Personnel Manager, Whittaker Corporation,
UAE.

Fady Elassaad

American / Lebanese, 47 years
Group Manufacturing Director
Joined Agthia Group in July 2009.
Previous posts include: Manufacturing Manager,
Mars, Dubai & Cairo. Production Manager, PepsiCo/Tropicana, USA. Process Engineer Manager,
Borden Inc/Heinz, USA.
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Fasahat Beg

Canadian, 52 years
General Manager, Water & Beverages
Joined Agthia Group in July 2006.
Previous posts include: Commercial Director,
SE Asia Food & Snacks, Pepsico International,
Marketing & Sales Director, JT International S.A.,
Czech & Slovak Republics.

Manolis Trigkonis

Greek, 46 years
General Manager, Flour & Animal Feed
Joined Agthia Group in September 2009.
Previous posts include: General Manager, Vivartia, Central & Eastern Europe. General Manager,
Mars, Greece. Product Manager, Johnson & Johnson, Greece.

Stefano Cutrona

Italian, 43 years
General Manager, Tomato Paste & Frozen Vegetables
Joined Agthia Group in November 2007.
Previous posts include: Marketing & Sales Director,
H.J.Heinz, Middle East & Africa.

Mohammed Salah Atwia

Egyptian, 56 years
General Manager, Al Ain Factory, Egypt
Joined Agthia Group in December 2006
as Group Manufacturing Director.
Previous posts include: Manufacturing Director,
The Gillette Company, Russia.
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Corporate
Governance
The Board of Agthia is fully committed to consistently
protecting the interests of all shareholders through
the application of high standards of Corporate
Governance.

Effectively applied corporate governance
guidelines are the foundation of business
integrity and ultimately lead to robust
and sustainable business results. Agthia
aims to preserve and enhance shareholder value by ensuring high standards
of professionalism, corporate performance and accountability.
Company’s philosophy on the
Code of Corporate Governance
Agthia acknowledges its responsibilities to its multiple stakeholders. The
Company believes that good corporate
governance helps to achieve management commitment to delivering value
to shareholders through the setting of,
and achieving, appropriate business
objectives. Good corporate governance
provides an appropriate framework for
the Board, its Committees, and the Executive management to most effectively
represent the interests of the Company
and its stakeholders. Agthia maintains
high levels of transparency, accountability and good management practices.
This includes adopting and monitoring
appropriate corporate strategies, objectives and procedures that comply with its
legal and ethical responsibilities. A rigorously applied code of conduct ensures
good corporate governance in business
practices and activities throughout the
organisation.
The UAE’s Security & Commodity Authority (SCA) requires all companies listed
in the UAE to meet its corporate governance guidelines by end April 2010.
While Agthia already complies with the
key requirements, it is currently focusing
on addressing a small number of identified gaps in order to be fully compliant
within the time frame outlined by SCA.

TRADING IN SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
The Company has formulated a tight
policy for trading in the Company’s securities by its employees and Board members. The policy ensures full compliance
to ADX regulations relating to insider
trading.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Role of Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is ultimately
responsible for ensuring that the Company is being managed in the interests
of all shareholders.
Key responsibilities of the Board include:
• Providing entrepreneurial leadership
to the Company within a framework of
prudent and effective controls which
enable risk to be assessed and managed.
• Setting the Company’s values and
standards and ensuring obligations to
its stakeholders and others are understood and met.
• Acting in good faith and with care and
diligence, in the best interests of the
Company and avoiding conflicts in the
role of being a Director from any personal interests.
• Constructively challenging and helping
developing proposals on strategy.
• Making reasonable inquiries to ensure
that the Company is operating efficiently, effectively and legally towards
achieving its goals.
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• Undertaking diligent analysis of all proposals placed before the Board.

Board Member of the General Holding
Corporation

• Encouraging constructive debate in the
Boardroom and ensuring all relevant
issues are given due consideration, before a decision is made.

Board Member of the Abu Dhabi Food
Control Authority

• Scrutinizing the performance of management in meeting agreed goals and
objectives and monitoring the reporting
of performance.

H.E. Majed Salem Al Romaithi
Vice Chairman
Executive Director of Real Estate, Abu
Dhabi Investment Authority

H.E. Abu Bakr Siddiq Khouri
Member
• Ensuring that the attainment of corpo- Managing Director, Sorouh Real Estate
rate goals achieved through measured PJSC
risk-taking is in line with the corporate
risk appetite. Furthermore, that the Board Member of Al Waha Capital PJSC
integrity of financial information and
financial controls and systems of risk Board Member of General Holding Cormanagement are effective.
poration
During the year 2009, eleven Board of
Directors meetings were held.

Board Member of the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange

Composition of Board of Directors
Agthia’s Board of Directors are elected
for a fixed term of three years by the
Company’s shareholders and the formation of the Board takes into consideration an appropriate balance between Executive, Non-Executive and Independent
Board members.

H.E. Jumma K. Al Khaili			
Member
Executive Director of Equities – Far East,
Abu Dhabi Investment Authority

The present Board of Directors was
elected at the Annual General Meeting on
24th April 2008 for a term of three years.
The Board currently has seven members,
comprising an Independent Non-Executive Chairman, and six Independent NonExecutive Directors. The names of the
current directors are:
H.E. Rashed Mubarak Al Hajeri
Chairman
Chairman of Department of Municipal
Affairs, Abu Dhabi
Member of the Abu Dhabi Executive
Council

Board Member of Abu Dhabi Islamic
Bank PJSC
H.E. Mohammed Thani Murshed Al Rumaithi
Member
Chairman of Thani Murshed Establishment
Chairman of Thani Murshed Unilever
Chairman of National Marine Dredging
Company
H.E. Tareq Al Masaood
Member
Deputy Managing Director, Al Masaood
Automobiles
H.E. Suhail M. Al Ameri
Member
Director General, General Holding Corporation

Chairman of Al Foa’h Company
Board Member of the Abu Dhabi Urban
Planning Council
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Chairman of Arkan Building Material
Company PJSC

Board Member of Abu Dhabi Basic Industries Corporation

pact on the Company’s continuity, success or development.

Board Member of Emirates Steel Industry

• Reviewing the proposed acquisitions of
any new business ventures, in conjunction with the Board.

Remuneration of Directors
According to Company’s Articles of Association, remuneration of Agthia’s Directors is determined by the General
Holding Corporation from time to time.

• Promoting and protecting Agthia’s image and business objectives to the external community and to establish and
maintain relations with the market and
third parties.

Directors’ fees of AED 1.3 million relating to 2008 were paid to Board members
in 2009. In 2009 remuneration was AED
1.5 million.

• Coordinating with senior management
in the formulation of goals and objectives for their respective functions as
well as the development of budgets.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Roles of the Chief Executive Officer
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is appointed by the Board. The primary role
of the CEO is to define and execute the
business vision, mission, strategy and
organisation. He is responsible for the
Company’s overall operations, profitability and the delivery of sustained growth,
and must direct the Company towards
the achievement of its objectives. The
CEO is expected to achieve business
objectives, forecasts and targets as defined by the Board, and to ensure that
all operations are managed efficiently in
terms of allocating resources appropriately and profitably.

• Reviewing operating results, comparing
results to established objectives and
ensuring appropriate measures are
taken to correct deviations, if any.

Board Member of Al Foa’h Comapny

Responsibilities
The CEO’s key responsibilities include:
Strategic Performance
• Defining and advocating Agthia’s organisation, values and culture.
• Executing the Company’s overall strategic plans and ensuring that objectives
set by the Board are met.
• Providing input and ensuring the development of an effective and dynamic
organisational structure that is well
suited to Agthia’s strategic goals.
• Leading critical negotiations and agreements that have a strategic/crucial im-

• Overseeing the adequacy and soundness of the Company’s financial structure.
Reporting
• Endorsing the monthly, quarterly, and
year-end financial statements and management reports.
• Reviewing the reports, recommendations and issues presented by senior
management, and providing feedback
and direction as required.
• Managing a regular reporting process
to the Board on the Company’s plans,
performance, issues and other important matters.
• Performing periodic evaluation of direct reports and ensuring the existence
of a continuous self development programme for senior management.
Internal Audit and Risk Management
• Ensuring the existence of proper corporate wide risk management activities.
• Supporting the Audit Committee to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of
implemented internal audit programs.
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Legal Requirements
Ensuring the appropriateness of the legal status of the Company and its Subsidiaries and adherence to all applicable
laws and regulations.
Communication and Performance Evaluation
• Performing the duties of the Primary
Spokesperson for AGTHIA.
• Communicating business progress to
the Board, Shareholders and Employees on a regular basis.

• Monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements of the Company, and any
formal announcements relating to the
Company’s financial performance, and
reviewing significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them.

• Encouraging and regulating internal
and external communication and creating a transparent and collaborative
working environment. Ensuring the existence of proper and effective communication across the Company.

• Reviewing the Company’s internal controls and risk management systems.

• Deciding on the recruitment of senior
management in consultation with the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

• Making recommendations to the Board
in relation to the appointment, re-appointment, removal and remuneration
of the external auditor and ensuring
a timely response by the Board on the
matters contained in the external auditor’s letter.

• Establishing performance measures for
senior management. Managing the performance of senior management and
assuming responsibility for their development, including regular performance
reviews and development plans.
• Ensuring the existence of succession
plans for all key managerial positions,
not within the remit of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.
AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee is appointed by the
Board of Directors and consists of four
members as at the date of this report;
three are Independent Non-Executive
Directors and includes a member with
relevant financial and accounting expertise. The Audit Committee monitors and
ensures the integrity of Agthia’s financial
statements, compliance with the laws
and regulatory requirements, the internal systems and controls, the adequacy
of risk management function, the independence and qualifications of the Company’s auditors and the performance of
the internal auditors and the compliance
function.
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Objectives
Committee maintains free and open
communication between the Committee,
external auditors, internal auditors and
senior management. The other objectives
of the Audit Committee include:

• Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s Internal Audit
Function.

• Reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking into consideration relevant
professional and regulatory requirements.
• Developing and implementing policies
on the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services, taking
into account relevant ethical guidance
regarding the provision of non-audit
services by the external audit firm.
• Reporting to the Board on matters that
in the Committee’s opinion requires action or improvement and to provide recommendations on the necessary steps
required to achieve such improvement.
• Establishing a system whereby employees can anonymously notify their
doubts on potential abnormalities in
the financial report or internal controls
or any other matter and ensure proper
arrangements for independent and fair
investigations of such matters.

Composition of Committee
H.E. Jumma K. Al Khaili, Chairman

INTERNAL AUDIT
Agthia’s Internal Audit department reports to the Audit Committee. The head
H.E. Mohammed Thani Murshed Al of internal audit is appointed by the Audit
Committee. The objective of the Internal
Rumaithi, Member
Audit Function is to provide independent, objective assurance and consulting
H.E. Tareq Al Masaood, Member
services using a disciplined systematic
approach to improve the effectiveness of
Mr. Hassan Agha , Member
risk management, internal control and
During the year 2009 the Audit Commit- governance process and the integrity of
the Company’s operations. The Internal
tee held four meetings
Audit Charter sets out the purpose, auNOMINATION AND REMUNERATION thority and responsibility of the Internal
Audit function.
COMMITTEE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for the review of the Reports prepared by the Internal Audit
Company’s HR framework and compen- department are submitted to the Audit
sation programs. The committee makes Committee and senior management of
recommendations to the Board on the the Company. On an ongoing basis, the
remuneration, allowances and terms of Audit Committee monitors the progress
service of Company executives to ensure that management has made with respect
they are fairly rewarded for their individ- to remedial actions taken on issues and
findings raised by the Internal Audit deual contribution to the Company.
partment. The Audit Committee reviews
the effectiveness of the internal auditors.
Objectives
The key objective of the Compensation
Committee is to assist the Board in ful- EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ FEE
The Board nominates the Company’s exfilling its responsibilities regarding the:
ternal auditor based on the recommen• Formulation and annual review of remu- dations of the Audit Committee. The apneration, benefits, incentives to the CEO pointment and remuneration of external
and Company’s executives and that the auditors are approved by the general asremuneration and benefits given to sen- sembly of shareholders. Audit and nonior management are reasonable and in audit related fees and costs of the services provided by the external auditors
line with Company’s performance.
KPMG during 2009 are AED 495,867
• Determination of Company’s needs for
qualified staff at the level of senior ex- INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK
AGTHIA’s system of internal control aims
ecutives and the basis of selection.
to ensure that the Board and manage• Annual performance review of Compa- ment are able to fulfill the Company’s
business objectives. An effective internal
ny’s senior executives.
control framework contributes to safe• Managing the process for the nomina- guarding the shareholders’ investment
tion and appointment of directors in line and the Company’s assets.
with applicable laws and regulations.
The objective of the Company’s internal
control framework is to ensure that inComposition of Committee
ternal controls are established; policies
H.E. Abu Bakr Siddiq Khouri, Chairman
& procedures are properly documented,
H.E. Majed Salem Al Romaithi, Member maintained and adhered to and are incorporated by the Company within its
normal management and governance
H.E. Suhail M. Al Ameri, Member
processes.
All the Committee members are Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Board. There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the risks
The Committee met twice during the year. faced by the Company. The management

is responsible for identifying key risks
and assessing their probable impact
through formal, defined processes.
The Board considers its policy and procedure to be adequate and effective, whilst
recognising that such a system is designed to mitigate rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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CSR
Initiatives

Environment
Reduce. Reuse. Recycle.
The UAE has one of the highest per capita
bottled water consumption rates in the
world. Every year approximately 80,000
tonnes of PET (PolyEthylene Teraphthalate)
material is used to produce bottles of water product in this growing market. Given
this, the recycling of PET has become a
priority for the UAE water manufacturers
and the UAE Government.
As one of the leading water manufacturers in the UAE, Agthia’s 100% owned
subsidiary, Al Ain Water, has taken a
leading role in reducing the usage of
PET it uses in the production of bottles,
and increasing the level of recycling of
PET across the UAE.
In line with the Company’s commitment
to reducing businesses impact on the
environment, Al Ain Water has reduced
PET usage in its water bottles and cups
production by an average of 10% in the
last two years.
In early 2009, Al Ain Water launched the
PET ‘Shrink A Bottle’ Campaign aimed at
encouraging recycling of PET bottles in
schools. The program ran across selective schools in Al Ain and the Hilton Hotel
in Al Ain. Participants used a unique PET
bottle shrinking machine that shrinks
PET bottles by 90%. This facilitates more
efficient recycling further cutting carbon
emissions related to the recycling process. The PET products are collected from
participants and transported to a PET
recycling facility in Fujairah.
Al Ain Water has also moved to recycled
packaging on all its distributed product
range reducing usage of shrink wrap
mass by 15%.

Furthermore, the Company is working
with well known consulting company
with the goal to reduce energy consumption. An Energy Reduction Scoping Audit
was conducted in Al Ain Water and a provisional report indicated that possible
energy reductions of 15-20% (water)
are foreseeable for the business. This initiative will be introduced and expanded
upon across all production units during
2010.

in 2009. Currently, 8 of the Company’s
existing UAE employees graduated from
the UAE University.
It is Agthia’s strategy to participate in local career fairs especially in Abu Dhabi
and Al Ain. In 2009, the Company was
present at Al Ain Career Fair and also in
the career fair that was organized by Abu
Dhabi University. Agthia is committed
to participate in 3 major career fairs in
2010 (Abu Dhabi, Al Ain and Dubai).

People
Emiratization
The objective of Emiratization is to provide equal opportunities to UAE citizens
to ensure they play a significant role in
the long term economic self-sufficiency
and growth of the country.
The Company’s National Talent Program
(NTP) was established in 2008. NTP
contributes to the development of intellectual, practical, creative and leadership
skills of selected, talented UAE employees through career-oriented and aspiration-tailored developmental mechanism.
The programme guides the employees
through a structured Individual Development Plan (IDP) of which mentoring and
coaching are core components.

In order to ensure that Grand Mills, a crucial enterprise to the Food Security of the
UAE, is staffed with UAE talent in key positions, Agthia decided in 2009 to launch
a scholarship program in collaboration
with the Swiss Milling School (SMS) St.
Gallen in Switzerland.
The scholarship program entitles two
Emirati graduates from Mechanical Engineering to travel and attend the Swiss
Milling School in order to achieve a Higher Diploma in Milling Technology (SMS).
Following attainment of the diploma,
scholarship candidates are guaranteed
career path opportunities with the Company’s flour and animal feed business
division.

In 2009, the number of Emiratis holding
administrative and managerial positions
within the company reached 7%. Moving
forward, Agthia has set an ambitious target to further increase the recruitment of
Emiratis. Therefore, creating career opportunities, both for fresh graduates as
well as experienced National Talent, in a
variety of functions.
The Memorandum of Understanding
which Agthia signed with the UAE University last year began to take shape
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Consolidated
Financial statements
31 December 2009

Independent auditors’ report		
Consolidated statement of income		
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement of financial position		
Consolidated statement of changes in equity		
Consolidated statement of cash flows		
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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The Shareholders
Agthia Group PJSC
Abu Dhabi
United Arab Emirates

Independent auditors’ report
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Agthia Group PJSC (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2009, and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles used and reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2009, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply, where appropriate with the relevant
Articles of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No. 8 of 1984 (as amended).

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
As required by the UAE Federal Law No. 8 of 1984 (as amended), we further confirm that we have obtained all information and
explanations necessary for our audit, that proper financial records have been kept by the Group, a physical count of inventories
were carried out by management, in accordance with established principles, and the contents of the Directors’ report which
relate to these consolidated financial statements are in agreement with the Group’s financial records. We are not aware of any
violation of the above mentioned Law and the Articles of Association having occurred during the year ended 31 December
2009, which may have had a material adverse effect on the business of the Group or its consolidated financial position.

Munther Dajani
Registration No. 268
Date: 25 March 2010
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Agthia Group PJSC
Consolidated statement of income
for the year ended 31 December

			
Note
Revenue 		
Cost of sales

6

Gross profit 		

2009

2008

AED’000

AED’000

921,382

853,929

(671,097)

(675,431)

250,285

178,498

Net other income

7

4,128

13,036

Selling and distribution expenses

8

(78,175)

(58,552)

General and administrative expenses

9

(68,007)

(55,204)

Results from operating activities		

108,231

77,778

Finance income		

1,915

635

Finance expense		

(3,745)

(4,712)

106,401

73,701

(688)

–

Profit for the year 		

105,713

73,701

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company		

105,713

73,701

0.176

0.123

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Basic and diluted earnings per share (AED)

10

11
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Agthia Group PJSC
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December

2009

2008

AED’000

AED’000

105,713

73,701

(552)

(247)

(1,500)

(1,500)

Total comprehensive income for the year 		

103,661

71,954

		Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the Company

103,661

71,954

			
Note
Profit for the year 		
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation difference on foreign operations 		
Board of directors’ remuneration
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22

Agthia Group PJSC
Consolidated statement of financial position
for the year ended 31 December

2009

2008

Note

AED’000

AED’000

Property, plant and equipment

13

453,957

409,318

Goodwill

12

92,986

92,986

546,943

502,304

			
		
Assets

Total non-current assets		
Inventories

14

232,036

162,688

Trade and other receivables

15

127,303

137,281

Government grant receivable

23

93,448

217,895

Cash and bank balance

16

190,224

40,142

643,011

558,006

Total current assets		
Bank overdraft

16

5,070

13,087

Bank loans (current portion)

19

84,011

108,402

Amount due to related parties

22

2,012

–

Trade and other payables

17

173,736

129,288

Total current liabilities		

264,829

250,777

Net current assets		

378,182

307,229

Staff terminal benefits

18

12,843

12,434

Bank loans (non-current portion)

19

11,522

–

Long term liability		

1,769

1,769

Total non-current liabilities		

26,134

14,203

Net assets		

898,991

795,330
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Agthia Group PJSC
Consolidated statement of financial position
for the year ended 31 December

(continued)
2009

2008

Note

AED’000

AED’000

Share capital

20

600,000

600,000

Legal reserve

21

30,279

19,708

Retained earnings		

269,511

175,869

Translation reserve		

(799)

(247)

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company		

898,991

795,330

			
		
Equity

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2010
and were signed on their behalf by:

______________________

______________________

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
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______________________
Chief Financial Officer

Agthia Group PJSC
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December

		
			

Share
Capital

Legal
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Translation
Reserve

Total

600,000

12,338

111,038

–

723,376

AED’000
Balance at 1 January 2008		

Total comprehensive income for the year					
Profit for the year		

–

–

73,701

–

73,701

Other comprehensive income:		
		

Foreign currency translation

		

difference on foreign operations		

–

–

–

(247)

(247)

		

Board of directors’ remuneration*		

–

–

(1,500)

–

(1,500)

Total comprehensive income		

–

–

72,201

(247)

71,954

Owners’ changes directly in Equity					
Transfer to legal reserve		

–

7,370

(7,370)

–

–

Balance at 31 December 2008		

600,000

19,708

175,869

(247)

795,330
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Agthia Group PJSC
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December

(continued)
			
			

Share
Capital

Legal
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Translation
Reserve

Total

600,000

19,708

175,869

(247)

795,330

–

105,713

AED’000
Balance at 1 January 2009		

Total comprehensive income for the year					
Profit for the year		

–

–

105,713

Other comprehensive income:					
		

Foreign currency translation

		

difference on foreign operations		

–

–

–

(552)

(552)

		

Board of directors’ remuneration*		

–

–

(1,500)

–

(1,500)

Total comprehensive income		

–

–

104,213

(552)

103,661

Owners’ changes directly in Equity					
Transfer to legal reserve		

–

10,571

(10,571)

–

–

Balance at 31 December 2009		

600,000

30,279

269,511

(799)

898,991

*In accordance with the Ministry of Economy and Commerce interpretation of Article 118 of UAE Federal Law No.8 of 1984,
directors’ remuneration has been treated as an appropriation from shareholders’ fund
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Agthia Group PJSC
Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December

2009

2008

AED’000

AED’000

105,713

73,701

34,823

26,759

		

3,745

4,712

Finance income		

(1,915)

(635)

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment		

–

1,460

Impairment on receivables and inventories		

4,730

560

Deferred acquisition expense		

–

2,964

Net impairment loss on property, plant and equipment		

–

5,448

Reversal of impairment loss		

(182)

–

7

–

(49,329)

13

(586)

–

24(a)

–

(25,883)

Income tax expense

10

688

–

Provision for staff terminal benefits

18

2,817

1,452

			

149,833

41,209

Change in inventories		

(72,841)

70,766

Change in trade and other receivables		

8,741

(10,972)

Change in government grant receivable		

124,447

(172,948)

			
		

Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year		
Adjustments for:
13

Depreciation
Finance expense

Write down of inventories
Fair value of property, plant and equipment received as grant
Fair value of property, plant and equipment acquired
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Agthia Group PJSC
Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December

(continued)
2009

2008

AED’000

AED’000

Change in amount due from related parties		

–

12

Change in amount due to related parties		

2,012

(33,308)

Change in trade and other payables		

42,260

67,929

(2,408)

(3,252)

		

252,044

(40,564)

Finance expense paid		

(3,745)

(4,712)

Net cash from / (used in) operating activities		

248,299

(45,276)

			
		

Staff terminal benefits paid

Note

18

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

13

(78,934)

(86,282)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

13

240

3,097

1,915

635

–

(10,805)

(76,779)

(93,355)

–

73,697

(12,869)

–

Effect of exchange rate		

(552)

(247)

Net cash (used in) / from financing activities		

(13,421)

73,450

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		

158,099

(65,181)

Finance income		
Goodwill acquired

24(b)

Net cash used in investing activities		
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank loans		
Repayment of loan – net

19

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

16

27,055

92,236

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

16

185,154

27,055
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1 Legal status and principal activities
Agthia Group PJSC (the “Company”) was incorporated as a Public Joint Stock Company pursuant to the Ministerial Resolution
No. 324 for 2004. General Holding Corporation PJSC owns 51% of the Company’s shares. The principal activities of the Company are to establish, invest, trade and operate companies and businesses that are involved in the food and beverage sector.
The Board of Directors of the Company, in an Extraordinary General Meeting dated 1 May 2008, approved to change the Company’s trade name to “Agthia Group PJSC” instead of “Emirates Foodstuff and Mineral Water Company PJSC”.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2009 comprise the Company
and it’s below mentioned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).
Subsidiary
		

Country of
incorporation
and operation

		
Grand Mills for Flour and

UAE

Share of equity %

2009

2008

100

100

Principal activity

Production and sale

Feed Company PJSC (GMFF)				
Al Ain Mineral Water Company

UAE

100

of flour and animal feed.

100

Production, bottling and sale

PJSC (AAMW)				
Al Ain Vegetable processing

UAE

100

of bottled water and beverages.

100

Processing and sale of tomato

and canning factory (AAV)				
Al Ain Food and Beverages (AAF&B)

Egypt

100

100

paste and frozen vegetables.
Processing and sale of tomato paste.

2 Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), and comply, where appropriate, with the Articles of Association of the Company and the UAE Federal Law No. 8 of
1984 (as amended).
(b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
(c) Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in UAE Dirhams (“AED”), which is the Group’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in AED has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.
Items included in the financial statements of the Company’s overseas subsidiary is measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate and are translated in accordance with the policies stated in 3(l(ii)).
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2 Basis of preparation (continued)
(d)		Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in note 29.
(e)		Changes in accounting policies
Starting as of 1 January 2009, the Group has changed its accounting policies in the following areas:
(i) Determination and presentation of operating segments
As of 1 January 2009 the Group determines and presents operating segments based on the information that internally is provided to the CEO, who is the Group’s chief operating decision maker. This change in accounting policy is due to the adoption of
IFRS 8 Operating Segments. Previously operating segments were determined and presented in accordance with IAS 14 Segment
Reporting. The new accounting policy in respect of segment operating disclosures is presented as follows.
Comparative segment information has been re-presented in conformity with the transitional requirements of such standard.
Since the change in accounting policy only impacts presentation and disclosure aspects, there is no impact on earnings per share.
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the CEO to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.
Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets (primarily the Company’s headquarters),
head office expenses and corporate liabilities.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill.
(ii)		Presentation of financial statements
The Group applies revised IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (2007), which became effective as of 1 January 2009. As
a result, the Group presents in the consolidated statement of changes in equity all owner changes in equity, whereas all nonowner changes in equity are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Comparative information has
been re-presented so that it also is in conformity with the revised standard. Since the change in accounting policy only impacts
presentation aspects, there is no impact on earnings per share.
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3 Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial
statements, and have been applied consistently by the Group entities.
(a)		Basis of consolidation
(i)		Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that currently are exercisable are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Group.
(ii)		Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
(b)		Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible
return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.
Transfer of risks and rewards vary depending on the individual terms of the contract of sales. For domestic sale transfer usually
occurs when the product is received at the customer’s location; however, for some international shipments transfer occurs upon
loading the goods onto the relevant carrier, for sale of stocks, transfer occurs upon receipt by the customer.
(c) Government grants
Grants that compensate the Group for losses incurred are recognised in the consolidated statement of income, as a deduction
from the cost of sales, on a systematic basis in the same period in which the losses are recognised. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are recognised in consolidated statement of income on a systematic basis over the useful
life of the asset.
(d) Earnings per share
The Group presents earnings per share data for its shares. Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
(e) 		Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, which represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Subsequently goodwill
is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset. The cost
of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the
assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part
of that equipment.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
of property, plant and equipment.
Gain and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised net within “other income” in the consolidated statement of income.
(ii) Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it
is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the consolidated statement
of income.
(iii) Capital work in progress
The group capitalises all costs relating to the construction of property, plant and equipment as capital work in progress, up to
the date of completion and commissioning of the assets.
These costs are then transferred from capital work in progress to the appropriate asset classification upon completion and commissioning, and are depreciated over their useful economic lives from the date of such completion and commissioning.
(iv) Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative period are as follows:
Buildings

30 - 40 years

Plant and equipment

10 - 20 years

Other equipment (included in plant and equipment)

3 years

Furniture and fixtures

4 years

Motor vehicles

4 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle.
Cost of inventories includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion cost and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In case of manufactured inventories cost includes an appropriate
share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the course of business less the estimated cost of completion and selling expense.
(h) Financial instruments
Financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and other payables, amount due
from/ due to related parties and bank loans. A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment losses if any.
Financial assets are derecognised if the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or if the
Group transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.
Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and term deposits with original maturity dates of three months or less.
Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Accounting for finance income and expense is discussed in note 3(j).
(i) Impairment
(i) Financial assets
Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A
financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be measured reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor or indications that a debtor
will enter bankruptcy.
An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are
assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(i) Impairment (continued)
(ii) Non-financial assets
The carrying amount of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill that have indefinite lives, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use and that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cashgenerating unit”).
The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit on a pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
(j) Finance income and finance expenses
Finance income comprises interest income on call deposits. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective
interest method.
Finance expenses comprise interest expenses on borrowings. All borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated statement
of income using effective interest method.
(k) Staff terminal benefits
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits is calculated in accordance with the UAE Federal Labour Law and is determined
on the basis of the liability that would arise if the employment of all staff was terminated at the reporting date.
Monthly pension contributions are made in respect of UAE National employees, who are covered by law No. 2 of 2000. The
pension fund is administered by the government of Abu Dhabi, Finance Department, represented by Abu Dhabi Retirement
Pension and Benefits Fund.
An actuarial valuation is not performed on employees’ end of service and other benefits as the net impact of the discount
rate and future salary and benefits level on the present value of the benefits obligation are not expected by management to be
significant.
(l) Foreign currency
(i) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to AED at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to AED at the exchange rate at that date.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(l) Foreign currency (continued)
(i) Foreign currency transactions (continued)
The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in AED at the beginning of the
period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortised cost as foreign currency translated
at the exchange rate at the end of the period. Differences arising on retranslation are recognised in statement of income.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences arising on
retranslation are recognised in statement of income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
(ii) Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to AED at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and
expenses of foreign operations are translated to AED at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency differences are recognised in other income.
(m)		Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s CEO to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available (see note 2(e(i))).
(n) Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
(o) Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in statement of income
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
(q) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Other than those adopted early as explained in note 2(e), a number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2009, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. None of these will have an effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

4 Determination of fair value
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purposes based on the
methods and the assumptions made as disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
(a) Property, plant and equipment
The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognised as a result of a business combination is based on market values. The
market value of property is the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between
a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably and willingly.
The fair value of items of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings is based on the market approach and cost approaches using
quoted market prices for similar items when available and replacement cost when appropriate.
(b) Trade and other receivables
The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated to be not materially different from their carrying amounts.
(c) Inventories
The fair value of inventories acquired in a business combination is determined based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and sale, and a reasonable profit margin based on the effort
required to complete and sell the inventories.

5 Financial risk management
Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

•
•
•
•

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk
Operational risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are
included throughout these consolidated financial statements.
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5 Financial risk management (continued)
Risk management
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management activities.
Through Group’s risk management process, risks faced by the Group are identified and analysed to set appropriate actions to
mitigate risk, and to monitor risks and adherence to the process. Risk management activities are reviewed when appropriate to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.
The Group Audit Committee oversees how management manages the Group’s risk management process, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management activities in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group Audit Committee is assisted in
its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management activities,
the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers.
Trade and other receivables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics
of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which customers operate, has less of
an influence on credit risk. However, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk.
The Group, in the ordinary course of business, accepts letters of credit/ guarantee as well as post dated cheques against credit
lines extended to customers. The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses
in respect of trade and other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to
individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses
that have been incurred but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment
statistics for similar financial assets.
Guarantees
At 31 December 2009 guarantees of AED 1,680 thousand were outstanding (2008:AED 6,000 thousand).
(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.
Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses in accordance with
the group’s working capital requirement, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of
extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.
In addition, the Group maintains the following lines of credit:

•

AED 251,000 thousand facilities, which includes overdraft, guarantee line and import line. These overdraft facilities carry interest
of EIBOR/ADIBOR + 1.25% per annum.

•

AED 92,000 thousand short term loan which carries interest rate of ADIBOR + 1.25% per annum.
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5 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group’s
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the
respective functional currencies of Group entities. The currencies in which these transactions primarily are denominated are
Euro, Egyptian Pound (EGP), UK Pound Sterling (GBP) and Swiss Francs (CHF). In respect of the Group’s transactions denominated in US Dollars (USD) the Group is not exposed to the currency risk as the AED is pegged to the USD.
Interest rate risk
The effective rates of interest on the Group’s bank liabilities and call deposits are linked to the prevailing bank rates. The Group
does not hedge its interest rate exposure.
Equity price risk
The Group does not have investments in securities and is not exposed to market price risk.
Other market price risk
The Group does not enter into commodity contracts other than to meet the Group’s expected usage and sale requirements.
(d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group’s processes,
personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks
arise from all of the Group’s operations.
The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the
Group’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.
The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior
management within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall Group standards for the
management of operational risk in the following areas:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of transactions
requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions
compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements
documentation of controls and procedures
requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified
requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action
development of contingency plans
training and professional development
ethical and business standards
risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Compliance with Group standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit. The results of
Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business unit to which they relate, with summaries submitted
to the Audit Committee and senior management of the Group.
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5 Financial risk management (continued)
(e) Capital management
The Management’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business.
The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher level of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

6 Cost of sales
Includes the following:
			

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Raw materials*		

551,889

586,572

Salaries and related expenses		

51,964

35,088

Depreciation		

31,098

23,273

* Cost of raw materials for flour and feed products is stated after the deduction of the Abu Dhabi Government grant amounting
to AED 153.9 million (2008: AED 358.6 million). The purpose of the subsidy was to partially reduce the impact of increased and
volatile global grain prices on food retail prices for the consumers in the Abu Dhabi Emirate.
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7 Net other income
			

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Amounts due to related parties written back (note 22) 		

–

33,308

Al Ain Vegetables, net assets received (note 24)		

–

35,207

Others		

4,128

13,754

			

4,128

82,269

Write down of inventory (note 14)		

–

(49,329)

Refurbishment expenses		

–

(12,160)

Impairment loss (note 13)		

–

(6,796)

Others		

–

(948)

			

–

(69,233)

Net other income		

4,128

13,036

Other income

Other expenses
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8 Selling and distribution expenses
			

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Salaries and related expenses		

31,699

21,230

Transportation charges 		

23,672

17,781

Marketing expenses		

13,262

11,523

Depreciation		

980

1,424

Other expenses		

8,562

6,594

			

78,175

58,552
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9 General and administrative expenses
			

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Salaries and related expenses		

36,269

32,980

Consultancy		

8,156

2,786

Audit fees 		

373

275

Depreciation 		

2,750

2,062

Impairment losses on trade receivables (net)		

1,237

1,109

Deferred acquisition expense		

–

2,964

Other expenses		

19,222

13,018

			

68,007

55,204

10 Income tax expense
The Group’s operations in Egypt are subject to taxation. Income tax for the current year is provided on the basis of estimated
taxable income computed by the Group for its operations in Egypt.

11 Basic and diluted earnings per share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share at 31 December 2009 was based on the profit attributable to shareholders of AED 105,713 thousand (2008: AED 73,701 thousand) and the weighted average number of shares outstanding of
600,000 thousand (2008: 600,000 thousand).
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12 Goodwill
			

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Balance at 1 January		

92,986

82,181

Acquisition through business combination (note 24(b))		

–

10,805

Balance at 31 December 		

92,986

92,986

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s operating segments where the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. The aggregate carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each unit is as follows:
			

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Flour and Animal Feed		

61,855

61,855

Bottled Water		

31,131

31,131

			

92,986

92,986

The recoverable amounts of Flour and Animal Feed and Mineral Water cash-generating units were based on their values in
use determined by management. The carrying amounts of both units were determined to be lower than their recoverable
amounts.
Values in use were determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the continuing use of the units.
Cash flows were projected based on past experience and the five year business plan and were based on the following key
assumptions:
			

Flour and Animal

Bottled

		

Feed

Water

Anticipated annual revenue growth (%)		

5-12

10-25

Discount rate (%)		

13.53

13.53

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the food and beverage
industry and are based on both external and internal sources.
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13 Property, plant and equipment
		
		
		

				
Land and
Plant and
Furniture
Motor
buildings
equipment and fixtures
vehicles

Capital
work in		
progress
Total

AED’000
Cost
At 1 January 2008

269,063

410,722

16,768

21,572

6,625

724,750

Additions

5,657

25,958

4,572

1,200

47,469

84,856

Disposals

–

(6,256)

–

(1,073)

–

(7,329)

Transfer*

17,846

15,272

341

4,261

(6,625)

31,095

At 31 December 2008

292,566

445,696

21,681

25,960

47,469

833,372

At 1 January 2009

292,566

445,696

21,681

25,960

47,469

833,372

Additions

14,687

35,835

9,277

889

17,059

77,747

Disposals

–

(26)

(94)

(252)

–

(372)

18,527

30,715

–

–

(47,469)

1,773

325,780

512,220

30,864

26,597

17,059

912,520

At 1 January 2008

136,928

219,013

13,573

19,971

–

389,485

Charge for the year

6,915

16,083

1,470

1,783

–

26,251

Disposals

–

(1,772)

–

(1,000)

–

(2,772)

Transfer*

462

1,128

–

2,704

–

4,294

144,305

234,452

15,043

23,458

–

417,258

Transfer
At 31 December 2009
Depreciation

At 31 December 2008
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
		
		
		

				
Land and
Plant and
Furniture
Motor
buildings
equipment and fixtures
vehicles

Capital
work in		
progress
Total

AED’000
At 1 January 2009

144,305

234,452

15,043

23,458

–

417,258

Charge for the year

7,918

21,370

4,047

1,103

–

34,438

Disposals

–

–

(56)

(76)

–

(132)

Transfers

–

385

–

–

–

385

152,223

256,207

19,034

24,485

_

451,949

At 31 December 2009

Impairment provision for the book value
At 1 January 2008

–

1,348

–

–

–

1,348

Charge for the year

5,620

553

342

281

–

6,796

–

(1,348)

–

–

–

(1,348)

At 31 December 2008

5,620

553

342

281

–

6,796

At 1 January 2009

5,620

553

342

281

–

6,796

Charge for the year

–

–

–

–

–

–

Disposal

–

(26)

–

(156)

–

(182)

5,620

527

342

125

–

6,614

At 31 December 2009

167,937

255,486

11,488

1,987

17,059

453,957

At 31 December 2008

142,641

210,691

6,296

2,221

47,469

409,318

Disposal

At 31 December 2009
Net book value

63 / Annual Report 2009

Agthia Group PJSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
*Transfers include reclassification of reusable water bottles with a net carrying amount of AED 2,306 thousand (2008: 918
thousand) from inventory to property, plant and equipment. This reclassification has no impact on income.
During the year, the Group has received property, plant and equipment with a net book value of AED 586 thousand from the
Government of Abu Dhabi for AED nil consideration which has been capitalised as part of property, plant and equipment.
The buildings of subsidiaries, except AAF&B and Ice Crystal, have been constructed on plots of land granted by the Government
of Abu Dhabi for no consideration.

14 Inventories
			

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Raw materials*		

107,872

93,925

Work in progress		

10,947

20,954

Finished goods		

23,823

16,121

Spare parts and consumable materials		

19,813

21,983

Goods in transit		

79,253

15,884

		

241,708

168,867

Provision for obsolescence		

(9,672)

(6,179)

			

232,036

162,688

*In 2008 a loss of AED 49,329 thousand was recognised in statement of income due to the decrease in the net realisable value
of raw material inventory held as of 31 December 2008.

64 / Annual Report 2009

Agthia Group PJSC
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

15 Trade and other receivables
			

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Trade receivables		

90,610

90,442

Prepayments 		

9,330

12,034

Other receivables		

27,363

34,805

			

127,303

137,281

Trade receivables are stated net of impairment losses of AED 17,986 thousand (2008: AED 16,749 thousand).
The Group’s exposure to credit and currency risk, and impairment loss related to trade and other receivables is disclosed in note 27.

16 Cash and cash equivalents
		

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Cash in hand		

486

26

Cash at banks:
		

Current account		

21,694

4,521

		

Savings account		

1,219

4,237

		

Fixed deposits		

166,825

31,358

Cash and bank balances 		

190,224

40,142

Bank overdraft		

(5,070)

(13,087)

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows		

185,154

27,055

Fixed deposit are for period up to 3 months (2008: 3 months) carrying interest rates varying from 3.25%–3.5% (2008: 5.5 %–6%).
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17 Trade and other payables
			

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Trade payables		

115,217

62,060

Accruals		

54,345

59,906

Other payables		

4,174

7,322

			

173,736

129,288

		

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Balance at 1 January		

12,434

14,234

Charge for the year		

2,817

1,452

Payments made during the year		

(2,408)

(3,252)

Balance at 31 December		

12,843

12,434

18 Staff terminal benefits
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19 Bank loans
This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which are
measured at amortised cost.
Current liabilities		

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Short term loan 		

45,005

82,000

Credit facility		

35,717

26,402

Term loan 		

3,289

–

			

84,011

108,402

Non-Current liabilities		

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Term loan 		

11,522

–

			

11,522

–
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19 Bank loans (continued)
Terms and repayment schedule
AED’000			31 December 2009		
Currency
			

Nominal

Year of Face value /

31 December 2008

Carrying

Face value /

Carrying

interest rate

maturity

limit

amount

limit

amount

Short term loan

AED

ADIBOR+margin*

2010

92,000

45,005

92,000

82,000

Credit facility

AED

EIBOR+ margin*

2010

175,000

35,717

175,000

26,402

Term loan

EUR

EURIBOR+margin*

2014

16,446

14,811

–

–

283,446

95,533

267,000

108,402

Total			

*Margin on the above loans and facilities varies from 1.25% - 1.35%.
Credit facility is secured against following:
• Floating charge on the current assets of the Group in favour of the bank for the working capital facilities;
• Third party indemnity to make available guarantees, documentary credit, bills drawn, loan to finance import/open account
settlement in the name of any of the subsidiary of the Company in favour of the bank.

20 Share capital
			

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Authorised, issued and fully paid			
(600,000 thousand ordinary shares of AED 1 each)		

600,000

600,000

The share capital includes 526,650 thousand shares of a par value of AED 1 each, which have been issued for in-kind contribution.
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21 Legal reserve
In accordance with the Federal Law No. 8 of 1984 (as amended) and the Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit
for each year is transferred to the legal reserve until this reserve equals 50% of the paid up share capital. The legal reserve is
not available for distribution.

22 Related parties
The Group, in the ordinary course of business, enters into transactions at agreed terms and conditions, with other business
enterprises or individuals that fall within the definition of a related party contained in International Accounting Standard 24.
The Company has a related party relationship with the Group entities, its executive officers and business entities over which they
can exercise significant influence or which can exercise significant influence over the Group.
The volume of related party transactions, outstanding balances and related expenses and income for the year are as follows:
Amount due to related party comprises:
			

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

General Holding Corporation		

2,012

–

			

2,012

–

			

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Directors’ fees paid (last year)		

1,254

900

Payable to related party written back		

–

33,308

Others		

758

538

			

2,012

34,746

Transactions during the year:

An accrual of AED 1,500 thousand is made for the directors’ fee for the year 2009 (2008: AED 1,500 thousand).
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22 Related parties (continued)
The key management personnel compensations are as follows:
		

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Short term benefits		

15,877

12,319

Long term benefits		

4,597

6,973

			

20,474

19,292

			

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Government grant receivable		

93,448

217,895

23 Government grant

Government grant include amount of AED 87,219 thousand (2008: AED 207,895 thousand) receivable from the Abu Dhabi Government. The purpose of the grant was to partially reduce the impact of increased and volatile global grain prices on food retail
prices for the consumers in the Abu Dhabi Emirate.
During the year the Group was also granted with the assets of cold store located in Mina. These assets are fair valued at
AED 586 thousand.
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24 Business acquisition
(a) Acquisition of Al Ain Vegetable processing and canning factory
On 1 January 2008 the Group acquired Al Ain Vegetable processing and canning factory from GHC for nil consideration. Acquisition of the business has enabled the Group to enter the fast growing tomato paste and frozen vegetables market in the UAE.
Fair value of assets acquired is as follows:
				

2008

				

AED’000

Property, plant and equipment			

25,883

Inventory			

12,677

Trade and other receivables			

11,170

Trade and other payables			

(14,523)

			

35,207
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24 Business acquisition (continued)
(b) Acquisition of Ice Crystal
In December 2007 the Group acquired Ice Crystal (five gallon water) business. This was a strategic decision to enter the significant five Gallon water business segment.
The Group paid AED 14 million as consideration for the business, with the net assets acquired as follow:
			

2008

				

AED’000

Property, plant and equipment			

2,428

Inventory			

1,008

Other receivables			

119

Bank vehicle loan			

(112)

Other payables			

(248)

				

3,195

In addition to the above assets 30 years leasehold land was acquired measuring 40,000 square feet on which the factory is
located (note 28).
Given the nature of the acquired property, plant and equipment, the initial recognition and measurement principles of IFRS
3 were deemed to have been met.
Goodwill
Goodwill was recognised as a result of the acquisition as follows:
				

2008

				

AED’000

Total consideration transferred			

14,000

Less: net assets value of assets acquired			

(3,195)

Goodwill (note 12)			

10,805

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the brand and customer base acquired and the synergies expected to be achieved from
integrating Ice Crystal into the Group’s existing bottled water business.
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25 Segment reporting
The Group has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group’s strategic business units. The strategic
business units offer different products and services, and are managed separately because they require different technology and
marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the Board of Directors reviews internal management reports on
at least a quarterly basis.
The following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segment:
• Flour and animal feed, includes production and distribution of flour and animal feed.
• Bottled water, includes production and distribution of bottled water and beverages.
• Tomato paste and frozen vegetables, includes processing and distribution of tomato paste and frozen vegetables products.
Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment
profit, as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Group’s CEO. Segment profit is used to measure
performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments
relative to other entities that operate within these industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.
		
Flour and		 Bottled water
Tomato paste and
			animal feed		and beverages		frozen vegetables

Total

2009

2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

669,077

672,597

206,033

138,554

46,272

42,778

921,382

853,929

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

153,467

109,253

89,019

58,237

10,545

13,059

253,031

180,549

21

88

32

449

2

77

55

614

–

975

–

6

41

–

41

981

17,344

15,859

12,639

7,470

2,916

1,826

32,899

25,155

115,215

60,475

34,605

25,069

(4,869)

(15,612)

144,951

69,932

AED’000
External revenues
Inter segment revenue
Gross profit
Interest income
Interest expense
Depreciation expense
Reportable segment
profit / (loss) before tax
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25 Segment reporting (continued)
Non cash expenditure
		
Flour and		 Bottled water
Tomato paste and
			animal feed		and beverages		frozen vegetables
2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

2009

2008

–

–

–

–

–

6,796

–

6,796

1,214

1,109

23

–

–

–

1,237

1,109

Segment assets

581,871

684,564

256,378

191,946

96,262

59,980

934,511

936,490

Segment liabilities

113,863

63,546

34,135

39,870

20,145

26,524

168,143

129,940

14,072

10,013

53,006

61,343

11,059

11,717

78,137

83,073

		

2009

Total

AED’000
Material non cash items
Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment
Impairment losses on
trade receivables (net)
Others

Capital expenditure
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25 Segment reporting (continued)
Reconciliations of reportable segments’ gross profit, interest income and expense, depreciation, capital expenditure, revenues,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Reportable
Un allocated
segment totals		

		
		

2009

Consolidated
totals

Reportable Un allocated Consolidated
segment totals		
totals

2009

2009

2008

2008

2008

253,031

(2,746)

250,285

180,549

(2,051)

178,498

Interest income

55

1,860

1,915

614

21

635

Interest expense

41

3,704

3,745

981

3,731

4,712

Depreciation

32,899

1,924

34,823

25,155

1,096

26,251

Capital expenditure

78,137

1,383

79,520

83,073

1,783

84,856

AED’000
Gross profit

Profit for the year
		

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Total profit for reportable segments		

144,951

69,932

Other profit		

1,290

38,189

Other operating expenses		

(37,224)

(30,710)

Net finance expense		

(2,616)

(3,710)

Consolidated profit before income tax		

106,401

73,701

Unallocated amounts
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25 Segment reporting (continued)
Reconciliations of reportable segments’ gross profit, interest income and expense, depreciation, capital expenditure, revenues,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities.
Assets
			

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Total assets for reportable segments		

934,511

936,490

Other assets		

1,340

–

Other unallocated amounts		

254,103

123,820

Consolidated total assets		

1,189,954

1,060,310

			

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Total liabilities for reportable segments		

168,143

129,940

Other liabilities		

133

–

Other unallocated amounts		

122,687

135,040

Consolidated total liabilities		

290,963

264,980

		

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Bank guarantees and letters of credit		

111,062

41,193

Capital commitments		

31,282

36,261

Liabilities

26 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

The above bank guarantees and letters of credit were issued in the normal course of business.
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27 Financial instruments
(a) Credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was:
2009

2008

Note

AED’000

AED’000

Trade receivables

15

90,610

90,442

Other receivables

15

27,363

34,805

Cash at banks

16

189,738

40,116

307,711

165,363

			

			

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables as estimated by the Group’s management based on prior
experience and the current economic environment.
There is no significant concentration of credit risk, with overall exposure being spread over a large number of customers.
Impairment losses
The ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was:
			

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Not due		

66,370

68,332

Past due 1 – 30 days		

9,507

5,745

Past due 31 – 60 days		

4,351

2,599

Past due 61 – 90 days		

2,063

1,910

Past due 91 – 120 days		

1,546

2,677

More than 120 days		

24,759

25,928

Total		

108,596

107,191
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27 Financial instruments (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:
		

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Balance at 1 January		

16,749

15,640

Impairment loss recognised		

4,125

1,372

Write offs		

(2,888)

(263)

Balance at 31 December		

17,986

16,749

(b) Liquidity risk
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:
31 December 2009
AED’000
		
Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft
Bank loans
Long term liability
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Carrying

Contractual

Up to

1-2 years

2-5 years

value

cash flow

173,736

(173,736)

(173,736)

–

–

–

5,070

(5,076)

(5,076)

–

–

–

95,533

(96,924)

(84,641)

(3,567)

(8,716)

–

1,769

(1,769)

–

(65)

(861)

(843)

1 year			

More than
5 years
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27 Financial instruments (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
31 December 2008
AED’000
		
Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft
Bank loans
Long term liability

Carrying

Contractual

Up to

1-2 years

2-5 years

value

cash flow

129,288

(129,288)

(129,288)

–

–

–

13,087

(13,167)

(13,167)

–

–

–

108,402

(109,779)

(109,779)

–

–

–

1,769

(1,769)

–

–

(758)

(1,011)

1 year			

More than
5 years

(c) Foreign currency risk
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:
		

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

Euro

GBP

CHF

Euro

GBP

CHF

Forecast purchases

2,723

–

551

19

346

378

Long term loan

2,814

–

–

–

–

–

AED’000

The following exchange rates were applicable during the year:
			

Average rate

Reporting date rate

			

2009

2008

2009

2008

Euro			

5.119

5.400

5.263

5.175

GBP			

5.747

6.800

5.848

5.313

CHF			

3.389

3.399

3.538

3.476

EGP			

0.667

0.668

0.670

0.673
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27 Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)
A strengthening / weakening of the AED, as indicated below, against the Euro, GBP, CHF and EGP at 31 December would
have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency
exchange rate variances that the Group considered to be reasonably possible. The analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008, albeit that the reasonably
possible foreign exchange rate variances were different, as indicated below.

31 December 2009
		

Equity

Profit or (loss)

			

AED’000

AED’000

Euro (weakening by 5%)		

–

1,457

CHF (weakening by 4%)		

–

78

EGP (strengthening by 1.5%)		

(312)

–

(312)

1,535

			

Equity

Profit or (loss)

			

AED’000

AED’000

Euro (weakening by 6%)		

–

6

GBP (weakening by 2%)		

–

37

CHF (weakening by 7%)		

–

92

EGP (weakening by 3%)		

392

–

			

392

135

		

31 December 2008

The above analysis is based on currency fluctuations during January and February 2010.
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27 Financial instruments (continued)
(d) Fair value
The fair value of the Group’s financial instruments is not materially different from their carrying amount.
(e) Interest rate risk
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was;
Fixed rates instruments
			

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Financial assets		

166,825

31,358

Financial liabilities		

(1,769)

(1,769)

			

165,056

29,589

			

2009

2008

			

AED’000

AED’000

Financial liabilities		

100,603

121,489

Variable rates instruments
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28 Operating leases
Non cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows;
		

2009

2008

		

AED’000

AED’000

Less than 1 year		

4

4

Between 1 and 5 years		

20

20

More than 5 years		

48

52

			

72

76

The Group has a leasehold land under operating lease. The lease term is for 30 years, with an option to renew the lease at the
time of expiry.

29 Accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of the future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies, which are described in note 2(d), management has made the following judgements which have a significant
effect on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
(a) Impairment losses on receivables
Management reviews its receivables to assess impairment at each reporting date. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the consolidated statement of income, management makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows.
Accordingly, an allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified loss event or condition which, based on previous
experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.
(b) Provision for obsolescence on inventories
The Management reviews the ageing and movements of its inventory items to assess loss on account of obsolescence on a
regular basis. In determining whether provision for obsolescence should be recorded in the consolidated statement of income,
management makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is any future saleability of the
product and the net realisable value for such product.
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29 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
(c) Useful lives of plant and equipment
Management assigns useful lives and residual values to items of property and equipment based on the intended use of the assets and the expected economic lives of those assets. Subsequent changes in circumstances such as technological advances or
prospective utilisation of the assets concerned could result in the actual useful lives or residual values differing from the initial
estimates. Management has reviewed the residual values and useful lives of the major items of plant and equipment and have
determined that no adjustment is necessary.
(d) Income tax provision
Management has taken into consideration the requirements for a tax provision. Management has estimated the tax provision
based on the year’s performance after adjustment of non taxable items. The tax provision was calculated based on the tax rate
of the country where operations were performed taking into consideration the exemptions that could be claimed by conventions
either locally or internationally as at the balance sheet date.
(e) Impairment
At each balance sheet date, management assesses whether there is any indication that its assets may be impaired. The determination of allowance for impairment loss requires considerable judgment and involves evaluating factors including industry
and market conditions.

30 Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to the presentation adopted in these consolidated financial statements, as shown below:
		
			
As restated

As previously
reported

Increase /
(Decrease)

Note

AED’000

AED’000

AED’000

Property, plant and equipment

13

409,318

408,400

918

Inventories

14

162,688

163,606

(918)

Retained earnings		

175,869

176,019

(150)

Legal reserve		

19,708

19,558

150

			

767,583

767,583

–
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